UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
Before the
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SECURITIES ACT OF 1933
Release No. 9125 / June 8, 2010

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING
File No. 3-13927

In the Matter of

ORDER INSTITUTING CEASE-AND-
DESIST PROCEEDINGS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 8A OF THE SECURITIES ACT
OF 1933

Gordon Brent Pierce,
Newport Capital Corp., and
Jenirob Company Ltd.,

Respondents.

L
The Securities and Exchange Commission (“Commission”) deems it appropriate that cease-
and-desist proceedings be, and hereby are, instituted pursuant to Section 8A of the Securities Act
of 1933 (“Securities Act”) against Gordon Brent Pierce (“Pierce”), Newport Capital Corp.
(“Newport”) and Jenirob Company Ltd. (“Jenirob”) (collectively “Respondents™).
IL.

After an investigation, the Division of Enforcement (“Division”) alleges that:

Nature of the Proceeding

1. This matter involves an unregistered distribution of stock by Gordon Brent Pierce,
a Canadian stock promoter. Pierce reaped $7.7 million in unlawful profits by selling stock in
Lexington Resources, Inc. (“Lexington”), a now defunct oil and gas company, through two
offshore companies that he controlled, Newport Capital Corp. and Jenirob Company Ltd. Pierce,
Newport and Jenirob did not register their sales or qualify for an exemption from registration.

2. Beginning in late 2003, Pierce controlled Lexington by holding the majority of its
stock and by providing Lexington a consultant CEO who was employed by Pierce. In 2003 and
2004, Pierce directed the CEO to issue 3.2 million Lexington shares without restrictive legends to
Pierce and one of Pierce’s associates. Pierce then distributed these shares during 2004 while he
conducted a massive spam and newsletter campaign touting Lexington stock. As Lexington’s stock



price skyrocketed to $7.50 per share, Pierce sold 1.6 million of the 3.2 million shares to the public
through accounts of Newport and Jenirob at an offshore bank for profits of $7.7 million. This was
in addition to $2 million in profits Pierce made through sales of Lexington stock in his personal
account, sales found to be in violation of the federal securities laws in a previous action filed by the
Division. See In the Matter of Gordon Brent Pierce, Admin. Proc. File No. 3-13109 (Initial
Decision dated June 5, 2009; Notice that Initial Decision Has Become Final dated July 8, 2009).

Respondents

3. Pierce has provided stock promotion and capital raising services to Lexington and
other issuers in the U.S. and Europe through various consulting companies that he controls.
Pierce, 52, is a Canadian citizen residing in Vancouver, British Columbia and the Cayman
Islands.

4. Newport is a privately-held corporation organized in March 2000 under the laws of
Belize. Newport has a registered agent in Belize and maintains offices in Ziirich, Switzerland and
London, England. Pierce has been President and a director of Newport since 2000.

5. Jenirob is a privately-held corporation organized in January 2004 under the laws of
the British Virgin Islands. Jenirob has a registered agent in the British Virgin Islands and uses the
mailing address of a law firm in Liechtenstein.

Facts

Pierce Controlled Lexington

6. Lexington is a Nevada corporation that was a public shell company known as
Intergold Corp. until November 2003, when it entered into a reverse merger with a private company
known as Lexington Oil and Gas LLC and changed its name to Lexington Resources. Lexington’s
common stock was registered with the Commission pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange
Act from 2003 until June 4, 2009, when its registration was revoked. From 2003 to 2007,
Lexington stock was quoted on the over-the-counter bulletin board under the symbol “LXRS.” In
2008, Lexington’s only operating subsidiaries entered Chapter 7 bankruptcy.

7. From 2002 to 2007, Pierce provided Intergold and then Lexington with operating
funds, stock promotion services and capital-raising services through at least three different
consulting companies that Pierce controlled, including Newport. Pierce used these companies to
conceal his role and avoid being identified by name in Commission filings.

8. From 2002 to 2004, an individual who worked for Pierce served as CEO and
Chairman of Intergold and then Lexington through a consulting arrangement with one of the
companies that Pierce controlled. The individual was paid by Pierce’s consulting company, not by
Intergold or Lexington. The individual also worked for Pierce through Newport and received more
than $250,000 from Newport in 2004.



9. Intergold and Lexington did not have their own offices, but used the offices of
Pierce’s consulting companies in northern Washington State, near Vancouver, Canada. Pierce’s
employees answered telephones, responded to shareholder inquiries, and performed all other
administrative functions for Intergold and Lexington.

10. By October 2003, shortly before the reverse merger, Intergold owed one of Pierce’s
consulting companies nearly $1.2 million. On November 18, 2003, to satisfy part of this debt, the
CEO and Chairman of Intergold agreed to issue to Pierce, through one of his consulting companies,
vested options to acquire 950,000 shares of the public company. At the time, these shares
constituted 64% of Intergold’s outstanding shares (on a post-exercise basis).

11. Three days later, as part of the reverse merger, the CEO and Chairman agreed to
issue 2.25 million additional shares with restrictive legends to another offshore company that Pierce
formed and controlled. As a result, Pierce controlled more than 70% of Lexington’s outstanding
stock after the reverse merger.

12. Shortly after the reverse merger, Lexington purchased an interest in an oil and gas
property owned by Pierce, and then Lexington hired another company controlled by Pierce to drill a
well on that property. Lexington later purchased interests in a handful of other oil and gas
properties and drilled a few additional wells that produced small amounts of natural gas, but
Lexington never generated any meaningful revenue.

Lexington Issued Millions of Shares to Pierce and His Associates

13.  Within days of the reverse merger, Lexington began issuing stock to Pierce and his
associates pursuant to the stock options granted to Pierce’s consulting company. Pierce told
Lexington’s CEO and Chairman who should receive the shares and how many.

14. Between November 2003 and January 2004, Lexington issued 500,000 shares to
Pierce and 300,000 shares to one of Pierce’s associates. These became 1.5 million shares and
900,000 shares, respectively, upon Lexington’s three-for-one stock split on January 29, 2004.

15.  In February 2004, Pierce told Lexington’s CEO and Chairman to grant his company
additional stock options. Lexington then issued an additional 320,000 shares to Pierce and 495,000
shares to Pierce’s associate in May and June 2004. In total, Pierce and his associate received 3.2
million shares (on a post-split basis) between November 2003 and June 2004, all without restrictive
legends.

16.  Lexington improperly attempted to register these issuances by filing registration
statements on Form S-8, an abbreviated form of registration statement that may not be used for
the issuance of shares to consultants who provide stock promotion or capital-raising services,
like Pierce and his associate. Lexington’s invalid S-8 registration statements only purported to
cover issuances by Lexington, not any subsequent resales by Pierce and his associate.



Pierce Conducted a Promotional Campaign Touting Lexington Stock

17. In late February 2004, Pierce and his associate began actively promoting
Lexington by sending millions of spam emails and newsletters through a publishing company
that Pierce controlled. At the same time, Lexington issued a flurry of optimistic press releases
about its current and potential operations.

18. During the promotional campaign, Pierce personally met with potential Lexington
investors and distributed folders with promotional materials and press releases. Pierce’s
associate worked for Pierce’s publishing company and was responsible for communicating with
potential Lexington investors in Europe through Pierce’s consulting company.

19. From February to June 2004, Lexington’s stock price increased from $3.00 to
$7.50, and Lexington’s average trading volume increased from 1,000 to about 100,000 shares per
day, reaching a peak of more than 1 million shares per day in late June 2004.

Pierce Distributed Lexington Stock Through Newport and Jenirob

20.  The stock option agreements between Lexington and Pierce’s consulting company
and the option exercise agreements signed by Pierce and his associate provided that all shares
were to be acquired for investment purposes only and with no view to resale or other
distribution. No registration statements were filed relating to any resales of Lexington stock by
Pierce, Newport or Jenirob.

21. Of the 3.2 million shares Lexington issued to Pierce and his associate between
November 2003 and June 2004, Pierce sold 300,000 through his personal account at a bank in
Liechtenstein and distributed 2.8 million through Newport and Jenirob.

22.  Within days of Lexington’s issuance of these 2.8 million shares, Pierce instructed
Lexington’s CEO and Chairman to transfer them all to Newport or Jenirob. Pierce then further
transferred 1.2 million of the 2.8 million shares to ten individuals and entities in Canada and the
U.S., and Pierce transferred the remaining 1.6 million shares to the bank in Liechtenstein.

23.  Pierce produced to the Division copies of statements from his personal account at
the bank in Liechtenstein showing that he sold 300,000 Lexington shares in June 2004 for net
proceeds of $2 million. Pierce refused to produce any documents relating to sales of Lexington
stock that he made through accounts at the Liechtenstein bank other than his personal account.

24.  During 2004, the Liechtenstein bank sold 2.5 million Lexington shares in the open
market through an omnibus brokerage account in the U.S. held in the Liechtenstein bank’s name
for proceeds of more than $13 million, including $8 million in June 2004 alone.

25.  In March 2009, the Division received additional documents relating to the
Liechtenstein bank’s sales of Lexington stock. These documents showed that, in addition to
Pierce’s sales through his personal account, Pierce deposited 1.6 million Lexington shares in
accounts at the Liechtenstein bank in the names of Newport and Jenirob. Pierce was the
beneficial owner of the Newport and Jenirob accounts. Pierce sold the 1.6 million shares
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through the Newport and Jenirob accounts between February and December 2004 for net
proceeds of $7.7 million.

26. In addition to his refusal to produce records pertaining to Newport and Jenirob,
Pierce filed appeals in Liechtenstein that further delayed the Division’s efforts to obtain
documents related to Pierce’s Lexington stock sales through the Newport and Jenirob accounts.

Pierce Was Previously Found Liable For Unregistered Lexington Stock Sales
In His Personal Account

27.  OnlJuly 31, 2008, the Commission instituted cease-and-desist proceedings against
Pierce, Lexington and Lexington’s CEO/Chairman to determine whether all three respondents
violated Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act and whether Pierce also violated the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) by failing to accurately report his
Lexington stock ownership and transactions. Admin. Proc. File No. 3-13109. In that action, the
Division sought disgorgement from Pierce of the $2 million in net proceeds from his sale of the
300,000 Lexington shares in his personal account at the Liechtenstein bank in June 2004.

28. An evidentiary hearing in the prior action was held regarding Pierce February 2-4,
2009.

29. Before issuance of the Initial Decision in the prior action, the Division moved to
admit the new evidence first received in March 2009 showing that Pierce sold an additional 1.6
million Lexington shares through the Newport and Jenirob accounts, and also sought the
additional $7.7 million in disgorgement. The new evidence was admitted in the prior action, but the
Administrative Law Judge ruled that disgorgement of the $7.7 million in proceeds from Pierce’s
sales in the Newport and Jenirob accounts was outside the scope of the Order Instituting
Proceedings (““OIP”) in the prior action because Newport and Jenirob were not named in the OIP.

30. The Initial Decision in the prior action, issued June 5, 2009, found that Pierce
committed the alleged violations of the Securities Act and Exchange Act and ordered Pierce to
disgorge $2,043,362.33 in proceeds from his sale of the 300,000 Lexington shares in his personal
account. Neither party appealed the Initial Decision and it became the final decision of the
Commission on July 8, 2009.

Violations

31.  Asaresult of the conduct described above, Respondents Pierce, Newport and
Jenirob violated Sections 5(a) and 5(¢) of the Securities Act, which, among other things, unless a
registration statement is on file or in effect as to a security, prohibit any person, directly or
indirectly, from: (i) making use of any means or instruments of transportation or communication
in interstate commerce or of the mails to sell such security through the use or medium of any
prospectus or otherwise; (ii) carrying or causing to be carried through the mails or in interstate
commerce, by any means or instruments of transportation, any such security for the purpose of
sale or for delivery after sale; or (iii) making use of any means or instruments of transportation or
communication in interstate commerce or of the mails to offer to sell or offer to buy through the



use or medium of any prospectus or otherwise any security, unless a registration statement has
been filed as to such security.

I11.

In view of the allegations made by the Division of Enforcement, the Commission deems it
necessary and appropriate that cease-and-desist proceedings be instituted to determine:

A. Whether the allegations set forth in Section II are true and, in connection therewith,
to afford Respondents an opportunity to establish any defenses to such allegations;

B. Whether, pursuant to Section 8A of the Securities Act, all Respondents should be
ordered to cease and desist from committing or causing violations of and any future violations of
Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act; and

C. Whether Respondents should be ordered to pay disgorgement pursuant to Section
8A(e) of the Securities Act.

IV.

IT IS ORDERED that a public hearing for the purpose of taking evidence on the questions
set forth in Section III hereof shall be convened not earlier than 30 days and not later than 60 days
from service of this Order at a time and place to be fixed, and before an Administrative Law Judge
to be designated by further order as provided by Rule 110 of the Commission’s Rules of Practice,
17 C.F.R. §201.110.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Respondents shall file an Answer to the allegations
contained in this Order within twenty (20) days after service of this Order, as provided by Rule 220
of the Commission’s Rules of Practice, 17 C.F.R. § 201.220.

If Respondents fail to file the directed answer, or fail to appear at a hearing after being duly
notified, the Respondents may be deemed in default and the proceedings may be determined against
them upon consideration of this Order, the allegations of which may be deemed to be true as
provided by Rules 155(a), 220(f), 221(f) and 310 of the Commission’s Rules of Practice, 17 C.F.R.
§§ 201.155(a), 201.220(f), 201.221(f) and 201.310.

This Order shall be served forthwith upon Respondents personally or by certified mail.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Administrative Law Judge shall issue an initial
decision no later than 300 days from the date of service of this Order, pursuant to Rule 360(a)(2) of
the Commission’s Rules of Practice.

In the absence of an appropriate waiver, no officer or employee of the Commission engaged
in the performance of investigative or prosecuting functions in this or any factually related
proceeding will be permitted to participate or advise in the decision of this matter, except as witness
or counsel in proceedings held pursuant to notice. Since this proceeding is not “rule making” within



the meaning of Section 551 of the Administrative Procedure Act, it is not deemed subject to the
provisions of Section 553 delaying the effective date of any final Commission action.

By the Commission.

Elizabeth M. Murphy
Secretary



Service List

Rule 141 of the Commission’s Rules of Practice provides that the Secretary, or another
duly authorized officer of the Commission, shall serve a copy of the Order Instituting Cease-and-
Desist Proceedings Pursuant to Section 8A of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Order”), on the
Respondents and their legal agents.

The attached Order has been sent to the following parties and other persons entitled to
notice:

Honorable Brenda P. Murray

Chief Administrative Law Judge
Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, N.E.

Washington, DC 20549-2557

Steven D. Buchholz, Esq.

San Francisco Regional Office
Securities and Exchange Commission
44 Montgomery Street, Suite 2600
San Francisco, CA 94104

Mr. Gordon Brent Pierce

c/o Christopher B. Wells, Esq.
Lane Powell P.C.

1420 Fifth Avenue, Suite 4100
Seattle, WA 98101

Mr. Gordon Brent Pierce”

124 31% Street

West Vancouver, BC V7V 4P3
CANADA

Christopher B. Wells, Esq.

Lane Powell P.C.

1420 Fifth Avenue, Suite 4100
Seattle, WA 98101

(Counsel for Gordon Brent Pierce)

* The Division of Enforcement, through the Office of International Affairs and Canadian counsel,
will also attempt to personally serve Respondent Pierce.
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Newport Capital Corp.

c/o The Belize Bank Limited (registered agent)
60 Market Square

P.O. Box 364

Belize City

BELIZE

Newport Capital Corp.

c/o Mr. Gordon Brent Pierce
124 31% Street

West Vancouver, BC V7V 4P3
CANADA

Jenirob Company Ltd.

c/o Morgan & Morgan Trust Corporation Ltd. (registered agent)
Pasea Estate

Road Town, Tortola

BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS

Jenirob Company Ltd.

c/o Mr. Gordon Brent Pierce
124 31% Street

West Vancouver, BC V7V 4P3
CANADA
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